
rTT "j'T

ST. CHARLES
-X::;A_l_ C.X::.C'C..CX3^X^J

The City Council of the City of St. Charles welcomes you to its
Regular Meeting of Tuesday, September 8, 2015 at 6:00 p.m. at
830 Whitewater Avenue, City Council Chambers, St. Charles,
Minnesota.

ITEM ACTION REQUESTED

1. Call to Order
2. Pledge of Allegiance
3. September 8, 2015 Agenda APPROVE
4. Meeting Minutes APPROVE

-August 18,2015
-August 25, 2015

5. September Payables APPROVE
6. Notices and Communications (if applicable) INFORMATION
7. Reports of Boards and Committees: INFORMATION

7a. Administrator's Report, Nick Koverman

7b. Public Works Superintendent Report, Kyle Karger
7c. Chief of Police Report, Ken Frank (TBD)
7e. P&Z, Wayne Ge+z

7f. School Board, David Kramer

8. 2016 Preliminary Budget Discussion INFORMATION

9. Resolution #23-2015 EDA Levy Adoption APPROVE

10. Administrator's Review APPROVE

UNSCHEDULED PUBLIC APPEARANCES: Members of the audience may address any item not on the
agenda. State Statute prohibits the City Council from discussing an item that is not on the agenda,
but the City Council does listen to your concerns and has staff follow up on any questions you raise.
ADJOURNMENT

*Attachment. Questions? Contact Nick Koverman at St. Charles City Hall at 932-3020 or by
email at nkoverman@)stcharlesmn.orci.



ST. CHARLES
L^ZXZ.E3^S^^l^lZ3r'°E"X3'Z.I

MEMORANDUM for the CITY COUNCIL of St Charles for
.Tuesday, September 8, 2015

8. 2016 Budget Discussion. Council will continue budget discussion and
staff will be present to field questions. The Council would adopt the
preliminary budget to certify to the County at the September 22,2015
meeting. The proposed levy number can be reduced up until the December

meeting when the Council certifies the final levy.

9. Resolution #23-2015 EDA Levy Adoption. The EDA levy resolution is
included for consideration. According to the County Auditor, the city's

taxable market value increased from $188,013,600 to $192,277,300 and the
difference in the EDA levy increased from $34,086 to $34,859.

10. Administrator's Review. Mayor Schaber will present a letter for

approval by City Council.



MINUTES of the ST. CHARLES CITY COUNCIL
For Tuesday, August 18, 2015 held at 6:00 p.m. at

830 Whitewater Avenue
St. Charles, Minnesota

MEMBERS PRESENT:
Councilmen:
David Kramer
Dave Braun

Orv Dahl

Wayne Getz
Mayor John Schaber

STAFF PRESENT:
Police Chief Ken Frank, Fire Chief Lyle Peterson, Ambulance Director JeffHardtke, and Nick Koverman (City Administrator).

OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE: Dan White, Travis Lange (Benike Construction), David Molda (Benike Construction) and
Craig Hilmer (St. Charles Press).

1. ESTABLISH QUOROM/CALL TO ORDER
Quorum was established with Mayor Schaber calling the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. APPROVAL of the AGENDA:
Motion to approve: Orv Dahl
No discussion.

Motion carried.

4. MEETING MINUTES
-July 14,2015

Motion to approve: Orv Dahl
No further discussion.
Motion carried.

-July 28, 2015
Motion to approve: David Kramer
No further discussion.
Motion carried.

5. APPROVAL of AUGUST PAYABLES
Motion to approve: David Kramer
No further discussion.

Motion carried.

6. Notices and Communications. None.

7. Reports of Boards and Communications. Various reports were given.

8. EMS Building Update. Travis Lange from Benike Construction was present to give the Council a brief update on the progress
of the new fire/ambulance facility. Lange expressed that the overall project was moving forward as anticipated and that the
schedule was being met. A brief delay was sustained due to weather, but that the company anticipated making up the delay.

9. Resolution #21-2015 Awarding Bids Police Department Renovation. David Molda, Senior Project Engineer for Benike
Construction, outlined the construction budget for the EMS project and highlighted that the available funds remaining were
approximately $112,625. The Police remodel with the various alternates was $235,726. With the additional revenues pledged
toward the original project, a project contingency of $26,899 remained and the remodel could be completed. The portion of the
project that remained outstanding was the garage addition which was an additional $ 199, ,227 with the proposed alternative of
masonry wanescoat. Admin. Koverman and staff outlined several options to the Council within the existing Capital Improvement
Plan. In addition, the CIP reserve was approximately $126,000 that would allow either as a possible contingency fund or way to
fund other projects. In working with department heads, the options for pushing 2016 projects out and/or making one time
adjustments for general fund operations could afford the project's completion. Koverman did express that several options were



available to the Council to complete the project, but that it did not allow for much error and while much of the concems/hurdles
for unknown items were cleared, it did not leave a contingency. He asked Mr. Molda to provide Council information concerned
the future market. Mr. Molda outlined that he anticipated material increases of 7-10 percent on top of labor increases in the same
range. He stated that known projects of 8 school districts as well as DMC projects were being scheduled for late 2016-2017. He
estimated by waiting the hold may add up to an additional $20-30,000 in costs. Should the Council choose to wait until 2017, he
added that additional expenses from Benike would more than likely be incurred as well. Discussion surrounded the potential levy
increase and the adding of taxes. Staff demonstrated how the proposed tax levy for 2016 was primarily due to the EMS building
bond, which after consultation with Mike Bubany was proposed as part of the initial EMS bond discussion and that the estimates
were falling in line with the tme numbers. Staff showed how if the police garage was completed that it would not impact the tax
levy as it would fall within the existing budget. The question of the budget not falling within the $2.3 million budget was
answered as Mayor Schaber expressed that it was always the intent of utilizing existing pledged dollars from the departments to
make up the difference so that it would lessen the tax burden. Chief Peterson addressed the Council to express that consideration
should be given to the additional costs of not moving forward at this time. A brief discussion was held with respect to cash flow
of the costs with the addition in relation to 2015-2016. Hearing no further discussion, Mayor Schaber called for a motion. A
motion was made to accept Alternates #2 and #3 with the police facility remodel and Alternates #1 and #3 with the police garage
addition.
Motion to approve: David Kramer
No further discussion.
Motion carried.

10. Resolution #22-2015 Awarding Bids/Contract Storm Sewer Extension. Admin. Koverman presented the estimated
received and tabulated by WHKS with respect to the storm sewer project that would need to be completed as part of the
fire/ambulance building that extends under Highway 14 and was not part of the original project. After reviewing the bids it was
the recommendation that SL Contracting, Inc. be awarded the project for $35,320.
Motion to approve: Wayne Getz
No further discussion.
Motion carried.

UNSCHEDULED PUBLIC APPEARANCES
-None

Motion to adjourn at 7,54 p.m.
Motion to approve: Wayne Getz
Motion declared carried.

John Schaber, Mayor

Attest:
Nick Koverman, City Administrator



MINUTES of the ST. CHARLES CITY COUNCIL
For Tuesday, August 25, 2015 held at 6:00 p.m. at

830 Whitewater Avenue
St. Charles, Minnesota

MEMBERS PRESENT:
Councilmen:
David Ki'amer

Dave Braun

Orv Dahl

Wayne Getz
Mayor John Schaber

STAFF PRESENT:
Kristine Huinker (City Accountant), Kyle Karger (PW Supt.) Nick Koverman (City Administrator).

OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE: Cathy Groebner, and Craig Hilmer (St. Charles Press).

1. ESTABLISH QUOROM/CALL TO ORDER
Quorum was established with Mayor Schaber calling the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. APPROVAL of the AGENDA:
Motion to approve the agenda: Dave Braun
No discussion.

Motion carried.

4. Notices and Communications. Admin. Koverman relayed a notice from the League ofMN Cities, the invitation to the SMIF
annual meeting, and the Executive Director report from Project Fine.

5. Review of Financials. Clm. Getz asked various questions regarding past payables and answers were provided.

6. Coalition of Greater Minnesota Cities Presentation. Elizabeth Wefel presented information from the Coalition. No
questions were asked. The Council thanked her for her time and the CGMC.

7. Fort Culvert. Mayor Schaber expressed that he had a conversation with Mr. Fort and it was requested to have a second
meeting with himself, Clm. Kramer, Mr. Fort's engineer, and Steve Pearson. Mr. Fort would like the group to consider tiling and
possible heat tape of the culvert. Clm. Kramer expressed that the tiling, as previously discussed, would help with the weeping or
low flow of the culvert. He expressed that he was not against another meeting. Clm. Dahl hopes to find a resolution soon but
stated that the city should look to vacating the premise once completed. Clm. Braun did not agree with the heat tape as he did not
see a benefit and felt a perfectly good solution had been previously proposed, but that he was not against the tiling. Cost of the
project with the possible additional tiling was briefly discussed and more information would need to be sought. Clm. Braun
reiterated that once the resolution is complete that the City would vacate the property. Concensus by all was expressed. Clm.
Getz asked where the water was coming from and Supt. Karger explained that a natural spring had possibly been re-energized
and was flowing into the stream, which accounted for the low flow of water. It was discussed that once the group had met, the
recommendation would be provided to the City Engineer for review. It was agreed that if no resolution could be accepted that the
City would continue to proceed with vacating the road. A motion was made to hold one more meeting with the mayor, Clm.
Kramer, Mr. Fort, Mr. Fort's engineer, and Steve Pearson, bring back the information to the city engineer for review, and bring to
the Council during a September meeting and once complete vacating the property.
Motion to approve: Dave Braun
No further discussion.
Motion carried.

8. Delinquent Utilities-Scheduling of Public Assessment Hearing. Mayor Schaber expressed that at one of the next meetings
the Council would look to certify delinquent property utilities to the 2016 property taxes as is custom. While a public hearing is
not required. Mayor Schaber expressed that he felt Council would be willing to take comment regarding this matter. Mayor
Schaber expressed that he had a conversation with one individual who declined to come to the Council, but was informed that
there would be a meeting in September for consideration of these matters. Clm. Kramer expressed that if it was the decision of
the Council to take comment that he would propose notice the hearing as a public hearing in the interest of a more formal open
process. The Council concurred with the option and a motion was made to set the meeting date for September 22 at 6 p.m.
Notices will be sent and public notice published.



Motion to approve: Orv Dahl
No further discussion.
Motion carried.

9. 2016 Governmental Preliminary Budget Discussion. Kristine Engstrand, city accountant, led the Council through a
preliminary budget discussion highlighting points within her memo. She outlined the major changes and outlined a proposed 9.89
percent levy increase. The majority of the increase, as she discussed, was the planned fire/ambulance facility of 8.16 percent. She
highlighted some various strategies that could be utilized to lower the levy, but could not adjust beyond the 8.16 percent. Brief
discussion was held with respect to some of the various items, but more could be held at the following meeting.

10. EPA Impact on Rice Rules. Admin. Koverman began by highlighting the information that outlined the recent ruling by the
D.C. Circuit Court of Appeals that imposed a mandate to the EPA to eliminate the 100 hour exemption. Indications are that while
the EPA will be revising the number of hours, he mandate for May of 2016 will remain and that the only way for UMMEG
members to retain the accreditation of their units and forego the need to procure outside capacity is to equip the units with
appropriate upgrades designed to meet the EPA standards. This upgrade will allow units to be run free of hours limitations and
maximize their economic value to members and communities. Supt. of Public Works, Kyle Karger, indicated that since the plant
has been operation the savings to the utility customer has been estimated at between $350,000-$500,000 dependent on the year,
that Dairyland has not billed the city because of the generations capacity. Projections for projects of this nature have been
estimated at approximately $250,000. He expressed that as similarly sized utilities consider making the same investment, there
are limited companies in the Midwest that perform this type of work and that estimates are that a 12-week wait time for material
is common from the date of signing a contract. It is his desire to draft an Request for Proposal to send to potential contractors in
order to put St. Charles in the front of the process. He also hopes this proactive approach will save project costs prior to
contractors being inundated with requests and projects. Clm. Kramer asked that if this project were to be evaluated how it would
be paid for. It was outlined how a portion of the 2016 operating funds would be used and a portion of the Capital Improvement
Plan budget could also be used. If these were not viable options to the Council, certainly the utility's reserve could be utilized as
well. It was discussed how the RFP process would not obligate the Council. A motion to direct staff to seek an RFP for the

potential upgrade of the generation plant was made.
Motion to approve: David Kramer
No discussion.

Motion carried.

11. Citizen Advisory Board Recommendation. James Purl had submitted an application to serve as a volunteer and indicated
his willingness to serve on both the Public Safety committee board as well as the Public Works board. Hearing no discussion a
motion to appoint Mr. Purl to the boards was approved.
Motion: Orv Dahl
No discussion.

Motion carried.

UNSCHEDULED PUBLIC APPEARANCES
None
Motion to adjourn at 7:06 p.m.
Motion to approve: Wayne Getz
Motion declared carried.

John Schaber, Mayor

Attest:
Nick Koverman, City Administrator





Join us for our Annual Training! We invite all Community Foundation
and Designated Fund board members to learn how they can increase
their community's philanthropic base, as well as that of our region.

DATE Thursday, September 17,2015

AGENDA 11:00: Registration, Welcome & Networking
11:45: Lunch & Morgan Stanley, Planned Giving
1:00: Ben Winchester, Rewriting the Rural Narrative
2:45: Major Gift Seminar & Group Discussion
4:00: Networking at Spare Time Entertainment

LOCATION Owatonna History Center, 1 700 Austin Road
DETAILS There is no cost to attend. Lunch will be provided.

RSVP Register by September 1 0 by contacting Alissa Blaha at

alissab@smifoundation.org or 507-455-3215.

Rewriting the Rural Narrative

It seems the rural story has already been told. Small towns keep getting
smaller. Churches, schools, clinics, businesses, and now post offices, have

closed their doors as the lucky few migrate out to the big cities. This deficit
framework dominates how we discuss and envision our rural communities.

However, the story of rural America since 1970 is rich and diverse, with
positive trends occurring under the radar.

We're excited to welcome Benjamin Winchester,
Research Fellow for the University of Minnesota

Extension, Center for Community Vitality, to
learn how these important positive changes
have been occurring across the rural landscape
that require us to rewrite the narrative of rural

community change.

Sponsored by:

The BlackRidge Group at Morgan Stanley

^̂Southern Minnesota

525 Fiorence Avenue

Owatonna, MN 55060



I ! f i"-
[WEtCOME'TQl I ' ,' |

ST. CHARLES
!ilATEWAV^>%<itEWATC'i! City Administrator's Report—August 2015

August 4-5- Two days of Blandin Leadership Training with Mayor Schaber and Supt. Karger.

August 10—Held the EMS building committee meeting and Park Board.

August 12—Phone conferenced with Bill Singer of ATGroup to discuss health insurance renewal and

various related healthcare policies.

August 13—Attended SHIP meeting in Winona to finalize the plan/budget to submit to the State.

August 18—Met with EMS building committee prior to Council meeting to discuss various projects.

August 27—Met with Bill Singer of AT Group to review policy.



Public Works Report - August 2015

Blvd and power line tree trimming; total patch streets; MMUA safety meeting

Finals on electric and water meters for City Hall; cleaned catch basins

Repair and straighten two street signs; repaired broken and lowered gate valves

Inspecting and mapping for infrared heat patches; installed new street signs; city crew moved hydrant

by Cabin Coffee for future water main loop

Cleaned up compost and brush dump; worked on or replaced broken street lights and blocked off RR

crossings for repairs

Swept streets in town; repaired barricade lights and cleaned/maintained Public Works fleet

Reworked southern part of ditch for Alice Stark's water issues; checked catch basins and

curbs/handicap ramps that needed repairs or replacements this fall

Emptied % of old public works shop for temporary ambulance and police storage; cleaned up parking

lot at old shop after City chip sealing and railroad crossing projects

Helped move and empty police garage; moved ambulance equipment to old shop and around City Hall

Helped with Gladiolus Days setup and cleanup; finished installation of new transformer for fire hall and

siren installation

Big Gain project continuing with new transformer and pole removals; changed oil on gen sets around

town

Substation report; power plant run and report; bids for NESHAP Engine upgrades for power plant

engines

Locates for water, sewer and electric utilities; rubber goods testing; electrical disconnects for

delinquent bills

Repaired pole on South Wabasha Ave with new crossarm, cutout and lighting arrestor - hit by lightning

and one arc flash from squirrel

Secondary wire replacement at 1555 Oakview Drive after complaints of blinking lights; locator repair

Connected new service at 1413 Whitewater Ave; replaced 25 KVA transformer on Circle Drive with 50

KVA transformer-old one was overloaded

Pulled (2) poles in Well #3 alley for final cleanup; lifted and leveled transformer at 1600 block of

Whispering Hills Drive

Located for 28 new guard post around hydrants and vital electrical equipment; installed new metering

at High School



Took electric and water truck to Winona for yearly replacement

Water samples; repaired curb stops; repaired and reseeded water-run on Circle Drive

Winterized chlorine room at pool; replaced batteries at both lift stations; found manhole at future

Dollar General lot for repairs

Sincerely,

Kyle Karger

Public Works Superintendent



City of St. Charles Police Department
Chief-Ken Frank #601

830 Whitewater Avenue

St. Charles, MN 55972

(507) 932-3020 • (507) 932-5301 FAX

September 4, 2015

Officer Matthew Loken successfully completed all areas of the pre-employment

screening and started work on Tuesday August 25.

Received $2500 in audio surveillance equipment to be used for undercover

operations. Equipment was received through a grant sponsored by the

Whitewater Coalition with an emphasis on enforcing underage sales of alcohol

and tobacco to minors.

Attended the Safe Roads to School Meeting Thursday evening Sept. 3 & have

met with school officials several times in reference the upcoming school year.

Sold for $200 on the State of MN on line auction 15 bicycles that turned into the

department the past couple of years. The State of MN gets 4% of the proceeds

for the sale.

Areas that officers have been directed to focus while on patrol include vehicles

passing on the right through intersections, not yielding to pedestrians in cross

walks and speeding in residential area. Officers have been requested to spend

time running stationary radar in various residential locations throughout the city.

Extra enforcement requested around the schools as there has been an excessive

amount of after dark activity in particular around the elementary building.

Received Federal funding for the next year for bullet proof vests. Federal funding

provides 50% the cost of a vest and the State reimburses the other 50%.

Funding for officer vests is for a five year period at which point they are eligible to

receive a new one. This department has a mandatory wear policy.

Respectfully Submitted,

Chief Ken Frank

'Proud to Serve'



Planning and Zoning Commission
Thursday, September 3,2015

7:00 P.M.

City Council Chambers
Minutes

MEMBERS PRESENT: MEMBERS ABSENT:
Wayne Getz Brace Dorman

Tim Jones
David Kramer
Nancy Heim
Jamie Bjerke
Terry Jones

STAFF PRESENT:
City Administrator Nick Koverman.

OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE: None

ESTABLISH QUORUM/CALL TO ORDER
Quorum was established and Nancy Heim called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.

APPROVAL of AGENDA
Motion to approve: Tim Jones
Seconded by: Wayne Getz
Motion declared carried

APPROVAL of MINUTES-July 9, 2015
Motion to approve: David Kramer
Seconded by: Tim Jones
Motion declared carried

BUSINESS ITEMS:

4a. Continued Discussion on proposed Chicken Ordinance. The Commission discussed information

provided by Minnesota Extension agent Wayne Martm. The Commission reviewed the proposed ordinance
and suggested various language adaptations. As part of the discussion, information related to the banding of
chickens was raised and asked Admin. Koverman to verify the amount of information able to be placed on
a band. The number of chickens allowed was discussed and the commission could not come to a concensus

on the allowable number, but rather asked for information to be provided as far as communities who allow
them if they regret the decision or what issues if any have been experienced. A discussion was also held
with respect to allowing or not allowing chickens in accessory structures like garages. It was agreed that if
residents use the ordinance for how it is intended any problems would be taken care of because people who
are interested in operating within good standing will want to keep a safe and clean environment and if it is
allowed for brooding purposes than why wouldn't the commission allow any other time. In addition, it was
questioned ifthek neighbor wanted to have chickens, would they support their neighbors decision. The
commission agreed to table moving forward with the next steps of a public hearing until more information
could be gathered.
Motion to approve: David Kramer

Seconded: Tim Jones
No further discussion.

Motion carried.

4b. Zoning Permit for Fences. Admin. Kovennan presented fencing requirements/fonns from other

communities as well as proposed changes to the current ordinance. One of the proposed changes was the

height allowance for front yard fences with the added opacity requirement. It was discussed that the 48 inch



height was common and should be allowed as along as the visual clearance is not disturbed. It was

discussed to eliminate calling out the fee in the ordinance itself but rather insertmg the fee proposal ia a
separate document that is reviewed more regularly as ordinance revisions can be cumbersome. A discussion

on the interpreted meaning of the distance of the front yard setback with shrubs, walls, accessory structures

was also reviewed. The Commission would take it under advisement and brmg back to the next meeting.

Admin. Koverman expressed that he would also propose an application for Certificate of Zoning for a fence
to be included with the ordinance. A motion to table was the made.

Motion to table: Jamie Bjerke
Seconded by: Terry Jones
No further discussion.

Motion carried.

Motion to adjourn at 8:35 p.m.: Wayne Getz

Seconded by: David Kramer
Motion declared carried.



CITY OF ST. CHARLES, WINONA COUNTY, MINNESOTA

RESOLUTION # 23-2015
RESOLUTION APPROVING LEVY REQUEST SUBMITTED BY THE

ST. CHARLES ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
FOR TAXES PAYABLE 2016

WHEREAS, the St. Charles Economic Development Authority ("EDA") has prepared and
presented a budget to the City Council of St. Charles, Minnesota and an estimate for tax revenues needed

for EDA programs and operations for the 2016 calendar year; and,

WHEREAS, pursuant to Minnesota Statutes Section 469.107 a City may authorize a levy for
economic development purposes in an amount that does not exceed 0.01813%ofit's taxable market value;

and

WHEREAS, a levy request by an EDA requires the governing body (City Council) to approve
certification of said levy request to the County Auditor by September 15 for the following year's taxes;
and

WHEREAS, said levy request is to be treated as a special taxing district in accordance with
Minnesota Statues Section 275.066 and appear as a separate line item on the 2015 property tax statements;
and

WHEREAS, the levy request contemplated in this Resolution is to be considered a stand alone
request and is not to be automatically renewed for future years' taxes.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of St. Charles,
Winona County, Minnesota that the levy request for taxes payable 2016 for all taxable property within the
corporate boundaries of the City of St. Charles, Winona County, Minnesota in the amount of $34,859
submitted by the St. Charles EDA and City Council of St. Charles is hereby approved for certification to
the Winona County Auditor.

Passed and approved September 8. 2015

John Schaber, Mayor
ATTEST:

Nick Koverman, City Administrator

CERTIFICATION

I, Nick Koverman, duly appointed City Administrator of the City of St. Charles, do hereby certify that the above resolution is a true
and correct copy of Resolution 23-2015 entitled "RESOLUTION APPROVING LEVY REQUEST SUBMITTED BY THE
ST. CHARLES ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITYFOR TAXES PAYABLE 2016" passed and approved by the St.
Charles City Council, Minnesota, on the 8th day of September, 2015.

City Administrator, City of St. Charles


